
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

A. Invocation 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Approve Nov. & Dec. 2022 & Jan., 2023 Minutes 

III. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON AGENDA ITEMS (3 Minutes) 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Acknowledge Receipt of the September 2022 Quarterly Financial Report 

B. Acknowledge Receipt of the December 2022 Tourist Development Tax Collection Report 

V. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Approve Task Order 5 MRD Associates/Dewberry for the Panama City Beaches 2023 One-

Year Post-Construction Monitoring Surveys 

B. Approve Task Order 5 CPE/APTIM for the Panama City Beaches 2023 One-Year Post-

Construction Coastal Engineering Analysis and Engineering Monitoring Report 

VI. PRESENTATIONS 
A.  Panama City Beaches Offshore Sand Source Desktop Study with Recommendations and 
Strategy for the Future, Lisa Armbruster, Sustainable Beaches, Tara Brenner, PG, PE, Quin 
Robertson, Ph.D., PG, Coastal Protection Engineering, and Beau Suthard, PG, APTIM   
B.  2022 Annual Visitor Profile and Economic Impact Results, Berkeley Young 

VII. PRESIDENTS REPORT 

VIII. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA 
COMBINED BOARD MEETING 

Bay County Tourist Development Council 
Panama City Beach Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 

Panama City Beach 
Tuesday, February 14, 2023                                                     9:00 a.m.                     Council Room, PCB City Hall 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 1 of 3

MOTIONS PASSED AT THE COMBINED BOARD MEETING, Tuesday, November 8, 2022 

Approved Minutes 
Mr. Casto/Mr. Walsingham 

Approved Consent Agenda 
Mr. Casto/Mr. Walsingham 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 2 of 3

COMBINED BOARD MEETING 
Bay County Tourist Development Council 

Panama City Beach Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 
Panama City Beach 

Tuesday, November 8, 2022                                               9:00 a.m.                          Council Room, PCB City Hall 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Chairman Chester called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  

II. ROLL CALL
      All Eight Members Present  

A. Invocation 
                      Mr. Wilkes gave the Invocation. 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
Mr. Chester led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

               C.    Approve Oct 11, Sept 6, & Sept 21,2022 Minutes 
Mr. Casto moved; seconded by Mr. Walsingham to approve the minutes. 

Motion passed unanimously  

III. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON AGENDA ITEMS (3 Minutes) 
None 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Rowe read the Consent Agenda into the record.   

           A. Acknowledge Receipt of the September 2022 Tourist Development Tax Collection Report 

Mr. Casto moved; seconded by Mr. Walsingham to approve the Consent Agenda. 

  Motion passed unanimously  

V. PRESENTATIONS 
A. Quarterly Visitor Research Update, Mr. Berkley Young 

Mr. Young reviewed the last quarter for visitor spending, TDT collections, and room night/revenue data. 

VI. PRESIDENTS REPORT 
Mr. Rowe stated that Positive Pay has been enable with our bank to combat fraud.  He also said that the 
landscaping contract for the sports park is sole sourced with Southeastern Outdoor Mgt.  Also, he stated that 
the completed application to Triumph Gulf Coast for the Indoor Sports Facility funding will be submitted this 
week.  Mr. Rowe also reported that the helicopter funding assistance request from the Sheriff will now be 
filled by the Sheriff leasing it until other state funding is received.  The lease payment could be made using the 
public safety funds allocated to the Sheriff without negatively effecting other public safety funding needs. 
Mr. Sale is currently leading the negotiations between Lose Design and the county for the contract related to 
the Western Region Resiliency Center and the contract with the CVB for the other development at the indoor 
sports center will follow suit.  The county contract is of the most importance and is currently ongoing. 
Mr. Rowe then reviewed the RFQ for renovations for Aaron Bessett Park and Amphitheater.  
Mr. Sale added that the plan is for the CVB to do the building, with the city’s permission, on city land and the 
city will provide construction contract administration. 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 3 of 3

VII. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
None 

VIII. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
NONE 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
Sharon Cook, Recording Secretary 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 1 of 4

MOTIONS PASSED AT THE COMBINED BOARD MEETING, Tuesday, December 13, 2022 

Approved Consent Agenda 
Mr. Patronis/Ms. Pease 

Approved Action Item A 
Mr. Walsingham/Ms. Pease 

Approved Action Item B: Committee Ranking 
Mr. Wilkes/Mr. Moore 

Approved Action Item B: Change to Contract 
Mr. Wilkes/Mr. Moore 

Approved Action Item B: Authorize Mr. Rowe negotiate price 
Mr. Casto/Mr. Walsingham 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 2 of 4

COMBINED BOARD MEETING 
Bay County Tourist Development Council 

Panama City Beach Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 
Panama City Beach 

Tuesday, December 13, 2022                                               9:00 a.m.                          Council Room, PCB City Hall 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Chairman Chester called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  

II. ROLL CALL
      All Nine Members Present  

A. Invocation 
                      Mr. Wilkes gave the Invocation. 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
Ms. Pease led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

III. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON AGENDA ITEMS (3 Minutes) 
None 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Rowe asked that before he begins the consent agenda, that they welcome Mr. Moore to the board.  He then 
read the Consent Agenda into the record.   

          A. Recommend to the Bay County Board of Commissioners for the award of Bid 23-08 Beach Tilling &       

               Escarpment Leveling Project 

          B. Acknowledge Receipt of the October 2022 Tourist Development Tax Collection Report 

Mr. Patronis moved; seconded by Ms. Pease to approve the Consent Agenda. 

  Motion passed unanimously  

V. ACTION ITEMS 
A.  Award Design Services Contract to Lose Design for the SABRE Event Center 

Mr. Rowe stated that this is for the non-Fema funded portion of the design project. 

Mr. Walsingham moved; seconded by Ms. Pease to approve Action item A. 

  Mr. Sale asked the board to add to the motion for minor changes to be allowed by Mr. Rowe with the consent 

of the Chairman should the need arise and the changes are deemed immaterial.  He said that this is a unique 

situation with the two contracts existing side by side but, due to FEMA regulations, there can’t be a specific tie 

between them and must be bid separately.  He also stated that the same contractor can be used for both.  Mr. 

Walsingham asked that the motion be altered to include Mr. Sales statement. Ms. Pease seconded. 

Motion passed unanimously 

        B.  Accept Recommendation rankings of the Aaron Bessant Park Improvement RFQ Review Committee 

              and authorize the President to negotiate and execute a contract with the highest ranked firm. 

Mr. Rowe reviewed the RFQ and asked the board to accept the committee’s ranking and accept Lose Design.  



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 3 of 4

He also asked they allow him to be able to enter into an agreement with Lose, if the form and function of the 

contract remains the same, and if the pricing they use for their principles remain the same, but instead of a lump 

sum, that we do a “not to exceed”.   He said we would get an estimate from them up front, then do it on an hourly 

basis based on the prices they have already given with a “not to exceed” price.   Therefore, we will not spend more 

than we needed and are able to move forward efficiently and expediently.  He then asked Mr. Sale to speak to this 

topic.   

Mr. Sale said he would like to break this into several different motions.   

First, approve the ranking of the RFQ committee 

Mr. Wilkes moved; seconded by Mr. Moore to approve the committee ranking. 

  Motion passed unanimously 

Second, Mr. Sale asked to approve Mr. Rowe to negotiate the contract to include a “not to exceed” clause with 
same hourly rates using an hourly basis. 

Mr. Wilkes moved; seconded by Mr. Moore to approve the change to the contract. 

  Motion passed unanimously 

Third, Mr. Sale asked the board to agree to give authority to Mr. Rowe and the Chairman to negotiate the price 
that will be the “not to exceed” price.   

Mr. Casto moved; seconded by Mr. Walsingham to approve Mr. Rowe and the Chairman to negotiate the “not 

to exceed” price. 

Motion passed unanimously 

Mr. Rowe stated that members of the Lose team will be coming in January to give an overview of their process.  

VI. PRESENTATIONS 
A.  Indoor Sports & Event Center Update, Mr. Dan Rowe 

Mr. Rowe stated that the application with Triumph Gulf coast has been resubmitted for the indoor sports center.  
He then gave an overview of the center’s history, as well as the process engaged for the progress of the center.   
He reviewed how the center can be used during a disaster as well as post storm sheltering.  Also, the use of the 
center by the community, Walsingham Academy, Emergency Operations, the military, and first responders.  He 
also discussed the Tech Bridge of Navy and that the center will be equipped with and will be used by the Navy for 
classified meetings.  He also stated that the contracts include that the center will be hardened for 200 mph winds 
and classified meetings.  He then answered questions from board members. 
Mr. Sale added that the indoor sports center has been an evolutionary process. He emphasized that this project 
started as an idea.  In order to give a visual representation, a rendering of similar facilities is being used in 
publications and reports.  He asked the board to understand that the final product will look differently.  He said 
that legally this is a new project and is based on the assembly of all of the uses that have evolved during the 
process.  What the final facility will look like is not to be expected at this time and the public and the media should 
be sure to understand that as well.   

        B.  Sports Tourism Industry & Publix Sports Park Update, Mr. Jason Clement 

Mr. Clement gave a summary of the sports industry, how it impacted the sports park, and a look at the future.  He 

also answered questions from the board.  Mr. Rowe discussed the skills building as well as the possibility of having 

cabanas in the park.  He also discussed the refurbishment of the beach ball in the park as well as the other social 

media picture points in the park.  He also discussed other improvements.  He also discussed the sales efforts in 

which our sports team are involvement.   



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 4 of 4

VII. PRESIDENTS REPORT 
Mr. Rowe discussed the CVB strategic plan.  He stated that the CVB team and agencies are working together to 
develop the new plan.  Also, he discussed the importance of the future use of TDT revenue and how outside 
agencies could have an interest in the use of those funds.  He announced the CVB and agency retreat to 
discuss the goals for the new strategic plan.   
He talked about the CVB support of the Billfish Tournament as well as the pavilion and improvements at Aaron 
Bessant park.  He said unless the board tell him otherwise, he will go forward with making those repairs and 
improvements.  

VIII. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
None 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
NONE 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
Sharon Cook, Recording Secretary 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 1 of 3

MOTIONS PASSED AT THE COMBINED BOARD MEETING, Tuesday, January 10, 2023 

Approved Election of Officers 
Mr. Wilkes/Mr. Walsingham 

Approved Consent Agenda 
Mr. Phillips/Mr. Moore 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 2 of 3

COMBINED BOARD MEETING 
Bay County Tourist Development Council 

Panama City Beach Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 
Panama City Beach 

Tuesday, January 10, 2023                                               9:00 a.m.                          Council Room, PCB City Hall 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Chairman Chester called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  

II. ROLL CALL
      Seven Members Present. Absent: 
Mr. Jansen 
Mr. Patronis       

A. Invocation 
                      Mr. Wilkes gave the Invocation. 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
Ms. Pease led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

              C.    Approve Election of Officers 
The Board wanted to keep the officers the same, Mr. Chester; Chairman, Ms. Pease; Vice Chairman, Mr. Patronis; 
Secretary/Treasurer 
Mr. Sale said that as long as nobody objected, keeping the same officers could be voted on in one vote.  He asked if 
anyone objected and there was no objection.  
Mr. Wilkes moved; seconded by Mr. Walsingham to approve the officers. 

Motion passed unanimously  

REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON AGENDA ITEMS (3 Minutes) 
None 

III. CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Rowe read the Consent Agenda into the record.   

           A. Acknowledge Receipt of the November 2022 Tourist Development Tax Collection Report 

Mr. Phillips moved; seconded by Mr. Moore to approve the consent agenda. 

  Motion passed unanimously  

IV. PRESENTATIONS 
 A.  Introduction of Lose Design, Mr. Dan Rowe, Mr. Whit Alexander, Mr. Sean Guth  

Mr. Rowe introduced Lose as the design firm named for the contracts for the Indoor Sports Center, AKA SABRE 

Center, AKA Western Region Resiliency Center.  Also, last month the board approved Lose for the Aaron 

Bessant Park improvements contract with a “not to exceed” clause which is under negotiations.   

Mr. Guth gave a summary of their process as well as discussing the needs and uses for the facility. He 

emphasized that the visual representations being used will change and those changes will be brought to the 

board for approval.  

Mr. Sale stated that the images that have been used were for reference only and emphasized that the look 

and build of this project will change as it is redesigned during the process as a result of all of the uses and 

needs being incorporated.  The design needs to be allowed to change for this purpose.   



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 

Page 3 of 3

Mr. Rowe stated that due to the securing of funding, the design is conceptual for now and will be fluid as all 

the needs and specifications regarding funding requirements are incorporated. 

The board discussed some of their concerns regarding the design and how it effects daily operation efficiency.  

Mr. Rowe assured the board that all of their opinions and suggestions for design and layout will be part of the 

process. 

Mr. Sale said that the FEMA funded portion is contracted through the county separately from the rest of the 

facility which is contracted with the CVB.  He said that they are meeting with county staff to discuss how to 

align those two buildings so they are, in one sense separate, and in another work together as one facility.  

Also, he said that a lot more data has to be obtained about the site, location.   Then, make sure it fits the 

security needs of the school board, meets FEMA requirements, and the CVB requirements.   

Lose discussed how their designs will change as they receive requirements from funding sources.  

Mr. Sale stated that the county signed a contract for the design of a 100 thousand sq. ft. building five feet 

outside it’s perimeter.  The CVB signed a contract for everything else including the site.  

Mr. Phillips asked if the foot print could be expanded from its original design.   

Mr. Rowe stated that in the original design is a stormwater retention pond almost adjacent to the building.  He 

said they are investigating moving that pond to the other side of the low-quality wetlands with some high and 

dry land that we own which is just to the south of an existing stormwater pond that we built.   So, if we can 

move that pond further east, it allows us more high and dry land contiguous to this.  

Mr. Sale said that once you get past the county designed building, the board has total flexibility with the rest 

of the non-FEMA funded design.   

Mr. Rowe stated that he and staff will be going to Rocky Mountain North Carolina to view another indoor 

facility. 

           B.  Economic Impact Awards for Sports Tourism Events, Mr. Chris O’Brien 

Mr. O’Brien gave a summary of the awards that were given for sports events as well as the impact of those events 

on the local economy. 

V. PRESIDENTS REPORT 
Mr. Rowe stated that he is working on the strategic plan with staff.  He also said that with collections continuing to 
be strong, that will allow us to effectively market PCB as a tourist destination as well as to do development 
projects that will help us strengthen, diversify and expand our portfolio of assets that will help generate year-
round visitation to PCB.  He said that Mr. Bailey has been successful getting state associations into market.  

VI. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
None 

VII. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
NONE 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
Sharon Cook, Recording Secretary 































 

 

 
 

 Tourist Development Tax,  Bay County, Florida 
 

 
Bay County Tourist Development Tax, Post Office Box 1230,  Panama City, Florida  32402 

Express Delivery:  225 McKenzie Ave, Panama City, Florida  32401 
     Phone: (850) 747-5226      Fax: (850) 747-5212      

 Visit us at:  https://TDC.BayCoClerk.com/TouristTax/   Email:  TDC@BayCoClerk.com 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 Tourist Development Tax,  Bay County, Florida 
 

 
Bay County Tourist Development Tax, Post Office Box 1230,  Panama City, Florida  32402 

Express Delivery:  225 McKenzie Ave, Panama City, Florida  32401 
     Phone: (850) 747-5226      Fax: (850) 747-5212      

 Visit us at:  https://TDC.BayCoClerk.com/TouristTax/   Email:  TDC@BayCoClerk.com 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 Tourist Development Tax,  Bay County, Florida 
 

 
Bay County Tourist Development Tax, Post Office Box 1230,  Panama City, Florida  32402 

Express Delivery:  225 McKenzie Ave, Panama City, Florida  32401 
     Phone: (850) 747-5226      Fax: (850) 747-5212      

 Visit us at:  https://TDC.BayCoClerk.com/TouristTax/   Email:  TDC@BayCoClerk.com 

 

 



 

 

   

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

COMBINED TASK ORDER AND  
NOTICE TO PROCEED 

 

 

TASK ORDER NO.   005           DATE ____________ 

 

Reference is made to that certain MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN BAY 
COUNTY, acting by and through the BAY COUNTY TOURIST DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL as the 
advisory agency to the County to administer said agreement, AND MRD ASSOCIATES, INC. dated 
2nd of February 2021,  relating to PROFESSIONAL, COASTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 
THE GULF BEACHES AND SHORELINE RENOURISHMENT PROJECT (the Agreement), the terms, 
conditions and definitions of which are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.  Neither party is in 
breach of the Agreement or aware of circumstances that could lead to a breach. 
 

1. Pursuant to the Agreement, Engineer agrees to perform the specific tasks set forth 
upon incorporated Attachment A, Scope of Services, relating to the Panama City Beaches 
Nourishment Monitoring Surveys - 2023. 
 

2. Engineer’s total compensation for the services to be provided by it under this Task 
Order shall be determined by one of the following methods as mutually agreed upon by both parties 
and as further defined in Attachment B.  Engineer’s compensation shall be paid in monthly 
installments as specified in the Agreement.  
 

_X_ Engineer’s total compensation, including reimbursable expenses, if any, is established 
in a stipulated sum of $      136,820.00     , or 

 

__ Engineer’s total compensation, including reimbursable expenses, if any, is established 
in a stipulated sum of $________________ , plus the specified allowances listed 
below which hereafter may be authorized in writing by County Manager or his 
designee,  

allowance of $______________   for _______________________, and 

allowance of $ _____________   for________________________, and 

allowance of $______________   for ________________________, or 
 



 

 

   

 

 

__ Engineer’s total compensation, excluding reimbursable expenses, if any, will be 
established by a fee determined on a time-involved basis with a maximum cost of 
$____________________. 

 

If reimbursable expenses are to be paid hereunder, such expenses must be specifically AUTHORIZED 
AND IDENTIFIED in Attachment B and established at either a fixed amount or a not-to-exceed price 
identified in said Attachment B. 
 

3. Work shall begin on May 1, 2023, and shall be substantially completed by August 
31, 2023.   Liquidated delay damages are set at the rate of $_____________ per day.  There are 
no additional rights and obligations related to this Task Order other than as specified in the 
Agreement.  The schedule for the services required hereunder is set forth in Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein. 
 

4. Attached hereto as Attachment C is a listing of Engineer’s staff who have been 
assigned to the Specified Work as well as the subconsultants and subcontractors who will be used 
by Engineer on the Specified Work, if any.  No changes to assigned personnel, sub-consultants or 
subcontracts may be made by Engineer without County’s Designated Representative prior written 
consent. 

 

5. Subconsultant(s) will be used:   
 ___ No 
   X  Yes, and a listing of each sub’s staff assigned to the Specified Work is set forth 
      in Attachment D.) 

  
(6)  Upon execution of this Task Order by both Engineer and County, Engineer is directed 

to proceed. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have caused these presents to be executed in their 
names as of the date first above written. 

 
[Signatures on following pages.] 

  





 

 

   

 

 

       BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
       BAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

ATTEST: 
       BY: ____________________________ 

__________________________________   Chairman 

Bill Kinsaul, Clerk 

        
 

Approved for form: 
 

__________________________________   

Office of County Attorney           

 

       OR 
 
 
 
  

Witness:      BAY COUNTY, FLORIDA* 

    

___________________________   By:        
Print Name:__________________   Name: __________________ 

        Its: __________________ 

 

___________________________ 

Print Name:__________________  

*    TDC Director if less than $10,000 

             Asst. County Manager if less than $100,000 

             County Manager if less than $150,000  

 

  



 

 

   

 

 

Attachment A 
Scope of Services 

Professional Coastal Engineering Services 
For Sandy Gulf Beaches and Shoreline 

Contract Number Bid 21-02 

Panama City Beaches Nourishment 
Monitoring Surveys - 2023 

Bay County, Florida 

Task Order No. 005 
Beach Topographic and Bathymetric Surveys 

Borrow Area Bathymetric Survey 
February 7, 2023 

Based on rates included in the TDC Coastal Engineering Master Services Agreement between Bay County 
and MRD Associates, Inc., dated February 2, 2021, MRD proposes to provide the following scope of 
services as requested.  MRD shall sub-contract surveying services to Dewberry Engineers, Inc. to perform 
all office and field work required for the purpose of performing 137 beach and offshore profile surveys 
between Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Reference Monuments R-O-B-T, R-O-C, 
R-1 through R-121, and V-301 through V-309 (132 lines) in Bay County as well as R-126 (AZ 214°), R-126 
(AZ 202°), R-127 (AZ 214°), R-127 (AZ 202°), and R-O-A (5 lines) in Walton County.  In addition, a 
hydrographic survey of the Shell Island Borrow Area S1-A will be performed.  Survey shall meet those 
requirements set forth in Sections 01000, 01100 and 01200 of the Bureau of Beaches and Coastal Systems 
(BBCS) Monitoring Standards for Beach Erosion Control Projects (dated March 2004, or more recent 
version) as well as Chapter 5J-17, Florida Administrative Code (FAC).  It is anticipated the surveys will be 
conducted in April/May 2023 (weather dependent) and the deliverables shall be submitted to the TDC 
within 60-days of completion of the field work.   

Task 1.0 Beach Topographic and Bathymetric Surveys 

The beach topographic and bathymetric survey of the 137 profile lines shall include the following: 

1. Survey Control:   

a) Surveys shall use BBCS “A” monuments for survey control. 
b) Designation, stamping, description, horizontal position, horizontal root-mean-square 

error (RMSE), elevation shall be in North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88), 
and elevation RMSE shall be provided to BBCS for all established base station control in 
the Monument Information Report. 

2. Beach Topographic Profile Surveys: 

a) All beach profile surveys shall be referenced to range monument locations and conducted 
along predetermined azimuths. 

b) A tabular listing of range monuments shall be provided that describes the coordinates, 
and profile azimuths. 



 

 

   

 

 

c) All profiles shall be collected on the Florida State Plane Coordinate System, U.S. Survey 
Feet. Horizontal datum shall be High-Accuracy Reference Network North American Datum 
1983/1990 (HARN NAD 83/90).  Vertical datum shall be NAVD 88. 

d) The upland topographic data shall begin at least 200 feet landward of the FDEP 
monument and extend seaward to a reasonable wading depth to establish sufficient 
overlap with the offshore bathymetric data. 

e) The beach profiles will be conducted using standard Real-Time Differential Global 
Positioning System (RTK/DGPS) surveying techniques.  Elevations shall be taken at a 
maximum of 10-foot intervals along each profile line and at all grade breaks or major 
changes. 

3. Bathymetric Survey Data: 

a) Bathymetric survey data shall be performed as close in time as possible with the upland 
topographic survey data and shall be no greater than 14 days apart.   

b) Maximum wave heights during the data collection period shall not exceed 3 feet.  
c) Offshore profiles shall extend a minimum of 3,000 feet seaward of the monument and 

have adequate overlap with the seaward limit of the wading survey. Soundings shall be 
obtained continuously along the offshore profiles and be acquired using a survey vessel 
with centrally located hull-mounted transducer. Horizontal positioning shall be acquired, 
and soundings shall be obtained by RTK using a single-frequency fathometer and Trimble 
Real-time RTK/DGPS. Coastal Oceanographics’ “HYPACK” system will be used for vessel 
navigation, data collection/storage and for merging the beach and offshore data.  All 
calibrations including fathometer, horizontal position, measurement of static draft, squat 
and settlement shall be conducted and documented in accordance with published 
requirements. 

d) The allowable off-line horizontal deviation shall be a maximum of 30 feet. 

4. Digital Products include: 

a) ASCII file containing raw x, y, and z profile data points. 
b) ASCII files containing the profile data processed into the FDEP distance and depth format.  
c) Monument Information Report in Excel format (.xls). 
d) Federally compliant metadata file including methodology of the data collection and 

processing procedures utilized. 
e) Copies of all checked standard field books. 
f) Contour Plots. 
g) Survey Report. 
h) Digital photographs of each Control monument, as well as, photographs at each profile 

line taken looking East, West and landward.  

Task 2.0 Shell Island Borrow Area S1-A Survey 

Hydrographic profile survey of the Shell Island Borrow Area S1-A shall include the following: 

1. Survey Control:   

a) Surveys shall use BBCS “A” monuments for survey control.   
b) Designation, stamping, description, horizontal position, horizontal root-mean-square error 

(RMSE), elevation shall be in North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88), and elevation 



 

 

   

 

 

RMSE shall be provided to BBCS for all established base station control in the Monument 
Information Report. 

2. Bathymetric Survey Data: 

a) All profiles shall be collected on the Florida State Plane Coordinate System, U.S. Survey 
Feet. Horizontal datum shall be High-Accuracy Reference Network North American Datum 
1983/1990 (HARN NAD 83/90).  Vertical datum shall be NAVD 88. 

b) Profile lines shall be spaced at 200-foot intervals. 
c) Data shall be collected at intervals not to exceed 15 feet. 
d) Maximum wave heights during the data collection period shall not exceed 3 feet.  
e) The allowable off-line horizontal deviation shall be a maximum of 30 feet. 

3. Digital Products include: 

a) ASCII file containing raw x, y, and z profile data points. 
b) ASCII files containing the profile data processed into the DEP distance and depth format.  
c) Monument Information Report in Excel format (.xls). 
d) Federally compliant metadata file including methodology of the data collection and 

processing procedures utilized. 
e) Copies of all checked standard field books. 
f) Contour Plots. 
g) Survey Report. 
h) Digital photographs of each Control & Range monument. 

INFORMATIONS TO BE SUPPLIED BY THE TDC 

Limits of the borrow areas surveys, list of monuments to be surveyed with Northings and Eastings and 
Azimuth, and Revised Physical Monitoring Plan. 

SCHEDULE 

Upon execution of this AGREEMENT, we estimate that the field work may commence within two (2) weeks 
of receiving a Notice to Proceed or by May 1, 2023, whichever is earlier.  All field work may be completed 
within four (4) weeks of commencing work.  All field work is weather dependent, and the schedule may 
change due to adverse weather and sea conditions.  Deliverables will be submitted to the TDC within 60-
days of completing the field work.  All work shall be substantially completed by the 31th of August 2023. 

TERMS and EXCLUSIONS 

This SCOPE OF SERVICES is subject to the following provisions: 

1) The services performed under this SCOPE OF SERVICES  are listed above and any other services 
not explicitly listed above are not included. 

2) This Scope of Services are for monitoring Beach Topographic and Bathymetric Surveys, and 
Borrow Area Bathymetric Survey, as described above.  This Scope of Services does not include any 
re-surveying, construction stakeout, or As-Built Surveys but can be provided under separate 
authorization.   

  



 

 

   

 

 

  



 

 

   

 

 

 
Attachment C 

Engineer’s Staff assigned to the Specified Work 
 

STAFF NAME    PERSONNEL CLASSIFICATION 

Michael Dombrowski, PE  Principal Engineer 

 

Attachment D 
Sub-Consultant’s Staff assigned to the Specified Work 

 

STAFF NAME    PERSONNEL CLASSIFICATION 

Eric Rankin    Surveyor III 

  



 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

COMBINED TASK ORDER AND  

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 
 
TASK ORDER NO. 005      DATE ____________ 
 

Reference is made to that certain MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN BAY 

COUNTY, acting by and through the BAY COUNTY TOURIST DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL as the 

advisory agency to the County to administer said agreement, AND COASTAL PROTECTION 

ENGINEERING LLC dated 2nd of February 2021,  relating to PROFESSIONAL, COASTAL 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE GULF BEACHES AND SHORELINE RENOURISHMENT 

PROJECT (the Agreement), the terms, conditions and definitions of which are incorporated herein 

as if set forth in full.  Neither party is in breach of the Agreement or aware of circumstances that 

could lead to a breach. 
 

1. Pursuant to the Agreement, Engineer agrees to perform the specific tasks set forth 

upon incorporated Attachment A, Scope of Services, relating to the Panama City Beaches 2023 

One-Year Post-Construction Coastal Engineering Analysis and Engineering Monitoring Report.  
 

2. Engineer’s total compensation for the services to be provided by it under this Task 

Order shall be determined by one of the following methods as mutually agreed upon by both parties 

and as further defined in Attachment B.  Engineer’s compensation shall be paid in monthly 

installments as specified in the Agreement.  
 

_x_ Engineer’s total compensation, including reimbursable expenses, if any, is established 

in a stipulated sum of $59,942.00, or 
 

__ Engineer’s total compensation, including reimbursable expenses, if any, is established 

in a stipulated sum of $________________ , plus the specified allowances listed 

below which hereafter may be authorized in writing by County Manager or his 

designee,  

allowance of $______________   for _______________________, and 

allowance of $ _____________   for________________________, and 

allowance of $______________   for ________________________, or 

 



 

 

__ Engineer’s total compensation, excluding reimbursable expenses, if any, will be 

established by a fee determined on a time-involved basis with a maximum cost of 

$________________. 
 
If reimbursable expenses are to be paid hereunder, such expenses must be specifically AUTHORIZED 

AND IDENTIFIED in Attachment B and established at either a fixed amount or a not-to-exceed price 

identified in said Attachment B. 
 

3. Work shall begin on May 15, 2023, and shall be substantially completed by October 

1, 2023.   Liquidated delay damages are set at the rate of $_____________ per day.  There are 

no additional rights and obligations related to this Task Order other than as specified in the 

Agreement.  The schedule for the services required hereunder is set forth in Attachment A attached 

hereto and incorporated herein. 
 

4. Attached hereto as Attachment C is a listing of Engineer’s staff who have been 

assigned to the Specified Work as well as the subconsultants and subcontractors who will be used 

by Engineer on the Specified Work, if any.  No changes to assigned personnel, sub-consultants or 

subcontracts may be made by Engineer without County’s Designated Representative prior written 

consent. 
 
5. Subconsultant(s) will be used:   

 ___ No 

 __X_ Yes, and a listing of each sub’s staff assigned to the Specified Work is set 

forth       in Attachment D.) 

  

(6)  Upon execution of this Task Order by both Engineer and County, Engineer is directed 

to proceed. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have caused these presents to be executed in their 

names as of the date first above written. 

 

[Signatures on following pages.] 



 

 

      ENGINEER: 
      Coastal Protection Engineering LLC 
 
 
      By: ___________________________________ 

       Its: _____________________________  

WITNESS: 

_______________________________ 

PRINT NAME:____________________ 
 
WITNESS 

_______________________________ 

PRINT NAME:____________________ 
 

 
State of Florida 

County of __________________ 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on __________________, 20__, 

by _________________________________, on behalf of and as the 

__________________________, of Coastal Protection Engineering LLC   
 
 

_________________________________ 

Notary Public 
 

Personally Known __________     OR Produced Identification    

Type of Identification Produced : ________________________________ 

 

 

  



 

 

 
 
        
 
ATTEST: 
        
__________________________________    

Bill Kinsaul, Clerk 

        
 
Approved for form: 
 
__________________________________   

Office of County Attorney           
 
        

 

 
 
  

Witness:      BAY COUNTY, FLORIDA
* 

    
___________________________   By:        

Print Name:__________________   Name: __________________ 

        Its: __________________ 
 
___________________________ 

Print Name:__________________  
*    TDC Director if less than $10,000 

             Asst. County Manager if less than $100,000 
             County Manager if less than $150,000  
 

 



 

COASTAL PROTECTION ENGINEERING 
P a g e  | 2 

 

 
ATTACHMENT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

2023 POST‐CONSTRUCTION COASTAL ENGINEERING ANALYSES AND MONITORING REPORT FOR  
2021/2022 PANAMA CITY BEACHES RENOURISHMENT PROJECT 

 

This is a proposal for Coastal Protection Engineering LLC (CPE) to provide monitoring support for the 
2021/2022 Panama City Beaches Renourishment Project, including preparation of the 2023 physical 
monitoring engineering report.  

Introduction 

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) constructed the federally authorized 2021/22 Panama City 
Beaches  Renourishment  Project  between  August  2021  and  May  2022.  The  project  included 
nourishment of approximately 13 miles of Panama City Beach shoreline within two reaches:  R‐1 to R‐
41 and R‐62 to R‐91. The project utilized sediment dredged from several authorized borrow areas, 
including BA S1‐A, BA 5C, BA 10, and BA 11.  

Nourishment of St. Andrews State Park is anticipated to be constructed in 2023. Bay County Tourist 
Development Council  (TDC)  is the project’s  local sponsor and holder of the Florida Department of 
Environmental  Protection  (FDEP)  Permit  No.  0308975‐004‐JN,  under which  this  project  is  to  be 
constructed. This scope of work provides for CPE to assist the TDC with 2023 physical monitoring and 
post‐construction reporting as described in Tasks 1 and 2 below. 

Task 1: 2023 Post‐Construction Engineering Monitoring Report Preparation   

This scope of engineering services to be performed by CPE includes the preparation and submittal of 
the 2023 Post‐Construction Engineering Monitoring Report. These analyses and report will satisfy the 
post‐construction physical monitoring  requirements  included  in FDEP Permit No. 0308975‐004‐JN, 
Specific Condition No. 33 and  the associated FDEP‐approved December 2020 Physical Monitoring 
Plan. The report will utilize survey data provided by a third party, Dewberry, which  is another Bay 
County TDC consultant. 

The engineering monitoring  report will be prepared by CPE using  the 2023  survey performed by 
Dewberry, relevant pre‐ and post‐construction surveys collected by USACE or their contractor for the 
2021/2022 and 2023 construction events, and the 2018 post‐construction monitoring survey from the 
2017 Panama City Beach Renourishment Project, as appropriate. The 2023 post‐construction survey 
is anticipated to  include monitoring at 137 beach profile  lines (104 Panama City Beach monitoring 
lines plus 33 additional monitoring  lines on Shell  Island) and one borrow area  (BA S1‐A). CPE will 
perform a QA/QC check on relevant pre‐ and post‐construction survey data and 2023 survey data, 
reviewing for any anomalies and suitability for engineering analyses.  

The coastal engineering monitoring report will contain the 2023 monitoring results compared to the  
2022 and 2018 conditions. The report will contain the following: 

 Summary of pertinent events in the project area between the monitoring surveys including 
storms and sand placement events 

 Comparative profile plots 

 Shoreline position tables, figures, and descriptions 



 

COASTAL PROTECTION ENGINEERING 
P a g e  | 3 

 

 

 Volume change tables, figures, and descriptions above MHW and depth of closure 

 Analysis of advanced nourishment volume placed  

 Cross shore comparative volume and profile change analyses by reach 

 Present and projected beach performance plots 

 Borrow Area S1‐A change analyses 

 Summary of  the 2023  St. Andrews  State Park Nourishment Project  including  volume  and 
location of material placed (pending availability at the time of report preparation) 

 Summary of permit compliance  for  the 2023 St. Andrews State Park Nourishment Project 
(pending availability at the time of report preparation) 
 

The changes in shoreline width, beach and borrow area measured volumes, comparative profiles, and 
other pertinent beach characteristics will be described and illustrated in tables and figures, as required 
by the FDEP physical monitoring plan. The engineering monitoring report will use the design standard 
as a basis for measuring the amount of advanced nourishment volume placed above MHW and depth 
of closure during the St. Andrews State Park nourishment event. The 2018 to pre‐construction time 
period erosion rate, or other time period as deemed appropriate, will be used to project future project 
performance in this monitoring report. 

Results will be analyzed for patterns, trends, or changes between surveys. Items will be compiled into 
an engineering monitoring report for distribution to the TDC, FDEP, and the USACE. Appendices will 
include plots of comparative profiles, pre‐construction and post‐construction survey information as 
available, tables of volumetric and shoreline position changes for the monitoring area by profile line, 
and  a borrow  area bathymetric  change plot.  The  engineering  report will  complement  the  survey 
report prepared by Dewberry and the timing of the engineering report will be contingent upon the 
timing of collection and delivery of survey data by Dewberry. 

Since the 2021/2022 project included dredging of BA S1‐A, FDEP Permit No. 0308975‐004‐JN, Specific 
Condition No. 32,  includes  additional  requirements  for  surveys of  approximately 6 miles of  Shell 
Island.  In compliance with this condition, CPE will notify the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation 
Commission (FWC) regional biologist prior to Dewberry’s collection of the beach profile surveys on 
Shell Island. Pre‐ and post‐construction beach profile survey information at each reference monument 
along Shell Island between R‐98 and V‐309 and analysis for these beach profiles will be included in the 
monitoring report and a copy of the report will be provided to FWC. This information may be used by 
FWC to determine if any documented changes to beach habitats subsequently impacted beach mouse 
critical habitat or beach mice populations. 

Schedule  

CPE will begin work immediately after receipt of the Notice to Proceed; CPE will start preparing the 
engineering report upon receipt of the completed survey data from Dewberry. All work is expected 
to be completed by November 1, 2023. 

 
   



 

COASTAL PROTECTION ENGINEERING 
P a g e  | 4 

 

 
ATTACHMENT B 
FEE PROPOSAL 

2023 POST‐CONSTRUCTION COASTAL ENGINEERING ANALYSES AND REPORT FOR 
2021/2022 PANAMA CITY BEACHES RENOURISHMENT PROJECT 

 
 

 



 

COASTAL PROTECTION ENGINEERING 
P a g e  | 5 

 

 

   



 

COASTAL PROTECTION ENGINEERING 
P a g e  | 6 

 

 
ATTACHMENT C 

PERSONNEL ASSIGNED 

2023 POST‐CONSTRUCTION COASTAL ENGINEERING ANALYSES AND REPORT FOR 
2021/2022 PANAMA CITY BEACHES RENOURISHMENT PROJECT 

 

 

Coastal Protection Engineering (CPE): 

Thomas Pierro, PE, DCE 

Tara Brenner, PG, PE 

Lauren Floyd 

Quin Robertson, PhD, PG, GISP 

Dylan Nestler, PE 

Adam Priest, PE 

Chelsea Maly, EI 

Sam Lohman, EI 

Frank Marshall 

Florencia Delorrio 

 

Aptim Environmental & Infrastructure, LLC (Sub‐Consultant, see Attachment D) 

 

   



 

COASTAL PROTECTION ENGINEERING 
P a g e  | 7 

 

 
ATTACHMENT D 

SUB‐CONSULTANT INFORMATION 

2023 POST‐CONSTRUCTION COASTAL ENGINEERING ANALYSES AND REPORT FOR 
2021/2022 PANAMA CITY BEACHES RENOURISHMENT PROJECT 

 

Sub‐Consultant Name and Address: 

Aptim Environmental & Infrastructure, LLC 

6401 Congress Avenue 

Suite 140 

Boca Raton, FL 33487 

 

Services to be Performed by APTIM: 

APTIM as a sub‐consultant to CPE, will provide  input and review of the engineering report as a subject 

matter expert. APTIM will perform these services as a sub‐consultant to CPE for a cost of $2,160 (as shown 

in Attachment B). 

 

APTIM Personnel Assigned: 

Stephen Keehn, PE 


	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36
	Slide Number 37
	Slide Number 38
	Slide Number 39
	Slide Number 40
	Slide Number 41
	Slide Number 42
	Slide Number 43
	Slide Number 44
	Slide Number 45
	Slide Number 46
	Slide Number 47
	Slide Number 48
	Slide Number 49
	Slide Number 50
	Slide Number 51
	Slide Number 52
	Slide Number 53
	Slide Number 54
	Slide Number 55
	Slide Number 56
	Slide Number 57
	Slide Number 58
	Slide Number 59
	Slide Number 60
	Slide Number 61
	Slide Number 62
	Slide Number 63
	Slide Number 64
	Slide Number 65
	Slide Number 66
	Slide Number 67
	Slide Number 68
	Slide Number 69
	Slide Number 70
	Slide Number 71
	Slide Number 72
	Slide Number 73
	Slide Number 74
	Slide Number 75
	Slide Number 76
	Slide Number 77
	Slide Number 78
	Slide Number 79
	Slide Number 80
	Slide Number 81
	Slide Number 82
	Slide Number 83
	Slide Number 84
	Slide Number 85
	Slide Number 86
	Slide Number 87
	Slide Number 88
	Slide Number 89
	Slide Number 90
	Slide Number 91
	Slide Number 92
	Slide Number 93
	Slide Number 94
	Slide Number 95
	Slide Number 96
	Slide Number 97
	Slide Number 98
	Slide Number 99
	Slide Number 100
	Slide Number 101
	Slide Number 102
	Slide Number 103
	Slide Number 104
	Slide Number 105
	Slide Number 106
	Slide Number 107
	Slide Number 108
	Slide Number 109
	Slide Number 110
	Slide Number 111
	Slide Number 112
	Slide Number 113
	Slide Number 114
	Slide Number 115
	Slide Number 116
	Slide Number 117
	Slide Number 118
	Slide Number 119
	Slide Number 120
	Slide Number 121
	Slide Number 122
	Slide Number 123
	Slide Number 124
	Slide Number 125
	Slide Number 126
	Slide Number 127
	Slide Number 128
	Slide Number 129
	Slide Number 130
	Slide Number 131
	Slide Number 132
	Slide Number 133
	Slide Number 134
	Slide Number 135
	Slide Number 136
	Slide Number 137
	Slide Number 138
	Slide Number 139
	Slide Number 140
	Slide Number 141
	Slide Number 142
	Slide Number 143
	Slide Number 144
	Slide Number 145
	Slide Number 146
	Slide Number 147
	Slide Number 148
	Slide Number 149
	Slide Number 150
	Slide Number 151
	Slide Number 152
	Slide Number 153
	Slide Number 154
	Slide Number 155
	Slide Number 156
	Slide Number 157
	Slide Number 158
	Slide Number 159
	Slide Number 160
	Slide Number 161
	Slide Number 162
	Slide Number 163
	Slide Number 164
	Slide Number 165
	Slide Number 166
	Slide Number 167
	Slide Number 168
	Slide Number 169
	Slide Number 170
	Slide Number 171
	Slide Number 172
	Slide Number 173
	Slide Number 174
	Slide Number 175
	Slide Number 176
	Slide Number 177
	Slide Number 178
	Slide Number 179
	Slide Number 180
	Slide Number 181
	Slide Number 182
	Slide Number 183
	Slide Number 184
	Slide Number 185
	Slide Number 186
	Slide Number 187
	Slide Number 188
	Slide Number 189
	Slide Number 190
	Slide Number 191
	Slide Number 192
	Slide Number 193
	Slide Number 194
	Slide Number 195
	Slide Number 196
	Slide Number 197
	Slide Number 198
	Slide Number 199
	Slide Number 200
	Slide Number 201
	Slide Number 202
	Slide Number 203
	Slide Number 204
	Slide Number 205
	Slide Number 206
	Slide Number 207
	Slide Number 208
	Slide Number 209
	Slide Number 210
	Slide Number 211
	Slide Number 212
	Slide Number 213
	Slide Number 214
	Slide Number 215
	Slide Number 216
	Slide Number 217
	Slide Number 218
	Slide Number 219
	Slide Number 220
	Slide Number 221
	Slide Number 222
	Slide Number 223
	Slide Number 224
	Slide Number 225
	Slide Number 226
	Slide Number 227
	Slide Number 228
	Slide Number 229
	Slide Number 230
	Slide Number 231
	Slide Number 232
	Slide Number 233
	Slide Number 234
	Slide Number 235
	Slide Number 236
	Slide Number 237
	Slide Number 238
	Slide Number 239
	Slide Number 240
	Slide Number 241
	Slide Number 242
	Slide Number 243
	Slide Number 244
	Slide Number 245
	Slide Number 246
	Slide Number 247
	Slide Number 248
	Slide Number 249
	Slide Number 250
	Slide Number 251
	Slide Number 252
	Slide Number 253
	Slide Number 254
	Slide Number 255
	Slide Number 256
	Slide Number 257
	Slide Number 258
	Slide Number 259
	Slide Number 260
	Slide Number 261
	Slide Number 262
	Slide Number 263
	Slide Number 264
	Slide Number 265
	Slide Number 266
	Slide Number 267
	Slide Number 268
	Slide Number 269
	Slide Number 270
	Slide Number 271
	Slide Number 272
	Slide Number 273
	Slide Number 274
	Slide Number 275
	Slide Number 276
	Slide Number 277
	Slide Number 278
	Slide Number 279
	Task Order 05 CPE
	2023 Post-Construction Coastal Engineering Analyses and  Report

